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--------------------
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Before DAVIS, BENAVIDES and CLEMENT, Circuit Judges

PER CURIAM:*

David Scott Evans (Evans) appeals his guilty-plea conviction

for aiding and abetting the possession with intent to distribute

more than 10 grams of lysergic acid in violation of 18 U.S.C. 

§ 2 and 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), b(1)(A)(v).  He contends that the

district court erred in assessing him two criminal history points

for a prior juvenile adjudication which resulted in his

commitment to a mental hospital.  He argues that he should have
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received only one criminal history point for his juvenile

adjudication, which would have made him eligible for the “safety

valve” provision of United States Sentencing Guidelines § 5C2.3,

thereby reducing his offense level by two points and his

guidelines punishment range to 87 to 108 months.

As Evans failed to raise these arguments at the sentencing

hearing, we review for plain error.  See United States v.

McCaskey, 9 F.3d 368, 376 (5th Cir. 1993).  As we have not

previously addressed whether commitment to a mental hospital

constitutes a “sentence to confinement” under U.S.S.G.

§ 4A1.2(d)(2)(A) or a “sentence of imprisonment” under U.S.S.G.

§ 4A1.1(b), there can be no plain error with respect to this

issue.  Even assuming arguendo that the district court erred in

calculating Evans’s criminal history score and that the

guidelines range should have been 87 to 108 months, Evans has not

shown that the error affected his substantial rights as his

sentence of 100 months was within that range.  See United States

v. Leonard, 157 F.3d 343, 346 (5th Cir. 1998); United States v.

Ravitch, 128 F.3d 865, 871 (5th Cir. 1990).

AFFIRMED.


